
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

Annual Report of Ho d ng Compan es-FR

Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year

This Report is required by law: Section 5(c)(1)(A) of the Bank
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C. S 1844(cXlXA)), sections 8(a)
and 13(a) of the lnternational Banking Acr(12 U.S.C. SS 3106(a)
and 3108(a)); sections 11(a)(1), 25, and 25A ol the Federal
Reserve Ad (12 U.S.C. SS 2a8(a)(1), 602, and 611a); and sec-
tions 113, 165,312,618, and 809 of the Dodd-FrankAct (12 U.S.C.

SS 5361, 5365, 5412, 1850a(cX1), and 5468(b)(1)). Return to the
appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the original and the number of
copies specified.
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OMB Number 710G0297
Approval expires September 30, 201 I
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This report form is to be filed by all top-tier bank holding compa-
nies, top-tier savings and loan holding companies, and U.S. inter-
mediate holding companies organized under U.S. law, and by
any foreign banking organization that does not meet the require-
ments of and is not treated as a qualifling foreign banking orga-
nization under Section 211.23 of Regulation K (12 C.F.R. S
211.23). (See page one of the general instructions for more detail
of who must file.) The Federal Reserve may not conduct or spon-
sor, and an organization (or a person) is not required to respond
to, an information collection unless it displays a currently valid
OMB control number.

},lAR 2 e 2011

NlC UIUI I

NOTE: The Annual Repoft of Holding Companies must be signed by
one director of the top-tier holding company. This individual should
also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. ln the event
that the toptier holding company does not have an individual who is
a senior ofiicial and is also a director, the chairman of the board must
sign the report. lf the holding company is an ESOP/ESOT formed as
a corporation or is an LLC, see the General lnstructions for the
authorized individual who must sign the report.

t, Kim D. \tVheless
Name of the Holding Company Director and Ofiicial

Director President & CEO
Trfle of the Holdlng Company Director and Official

attest that lhe Annual Report of Holding Companies (including
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pre-
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal
Reserve System and are true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

Wth respect to information regarding individuals contained in this
repoft, the Repofter cedifies that rt has lhe authoity to provide lhis
information to the Federal Reserue. The Reporler also certifies
that it has the authoity, on behaff of each individual, to consent or
object to public release of information regarding that individual.
The Federal Reserve may assume, in the absence of a requestfor
confidenlial treatment submitted in accordance with the Board's

details in the

Date of Report (top-tier holding company's fiscal year-end):

December 31 2016
Month/Day/Year

N/A
Reportefs Legal Entity ldentifier (LEl) (20-Character LEI Code)

Reporter's Name, Street, and Mailing Address

Central Bancshares, lnc.
Legal Trtle of Holding Company

P.O. Box 801263
(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street / PO. Box

Houston TX 77820
City State

11201Clay Road Houston,fX 77041
Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed:
Patrick C. Reed EVP, CFO & Secretary
Name Trtle

832-485-2306
Area Code / Phone Number / Extension

Zip Code

"Rules Regading of lnformalion," 12 C.F.R. Parl 261, 832485-2406
that the release of all Area Code/ FAx Number

preed@cbhou.com
E-mailAddress

Signature of N/A
AddrBss (l.JRL) for the Holding Company's web page

Date of Signature

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Only

RSSD ID
c.l

I l Ct '(('f,

Offce of Manaoemenl and Budget, PapeMork Reduction Project (710G0297). Washington. DC 20503. 1|212}16

For holding companies not registered with the SEC-
lndicate status ofAnnual Report to Shareholders:

E is included with the FR Y-6 report

E *itt Oe sent under separate cover

E is not prepared

0=No

l=Yes 0
ls confidentla! treatment requested for any portion
of thls report submission?...
ln accordance with the Genoral lnstructions for thls report
(check only one),

l. a letler justifying this request is being provided along

2. a letter justifying thls request has been provided

NOTE: lnfomatlon for whlch conffdenual treatment is belng
requestod must be provided separately and labeled
as "confldentlal."

tr
with the report

separately.



Report Item 2: Organizational Chant

No LEI is Available

0RGANIZATIONAL CHART - 72 / 31, / 20L6
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FORM FR Y-6

December 3L,20t6

Report ltem 3: Securities Holders fCentral Bancshares, Inc.)
(1) (a), (b), [c) and [2)(a)tb)(c)

Current Shareholders with ownership, control or holdings of 5% or more with
power to vote as of L2 / 37 / 1,6.

Securities holders notlisted in 3[1)(a) through 3(1)[c) that had ownership,
control or holdings of 5%o or more with power to vote during the fiscal year
ending L2/3L/20L6.

(1) (a)
Name and Address
City and State

t2xb)
Country of citizenship
or Incorporation

(r)(c)
Number and percent of
each Class of Voting
Securities

Carolyn f. Young,
Separate Property
Houston, TX

Carolyn f. Young
2012 Trust
Trustee:
Edward E. Hartline
Houston, TX

fohn H. Young
Houston, TX

Mark van Overbeek
Nancy van Overbeek
Plantation, FL

Mark van Overbeek
Plantation, FL

USA

USA

USA

USA

USA

t22L - 29.020/o

Common Stock

L222 - 29.04o/o

Common Stock

322 -7.55o/o
Common Stock

220 - 5.23o/o

Common Stock

143 - 3.40o/o

Common Stock

(2) (a)
Name and Address
City and State

t2)(b)
Country of citizenship
or Incorporation

(2)(c)
Number and percent of
each Class of Voting
Securities

None



Report 4: Insiders
Central Bancshares, Inc.

FORM FRY-5
December 3 2016

1J Name
& Address
(City,
State &
Counu'y)

(2) Principal
0ccupation
if other than
with Bank
Holding
Company

(3Xa)
Title &
Position
with Bank
Holding
Company

[3)(bJ ride &
Positionwith
Subsidiaries

(3)(c) Title
& Position
with
Business

$)(a)oh
ofVoting
Shares in
Bank
Holding
Company

(a)(b) % of
Voting
Shares in
Subsidiaries

(aXc) Lis
names ofother
companles
(including
partnerships)
if 250lo or more
ofsecurities
are held

N/A N/A N/A 29.020/o N/A Joy Resources,
Inc. - 100o/o

Carolyn I
Young
Separate
Property
Houston,
TX USA

N/A

N/A N/A N/A 29.04o/o N/A N/ACarolyn J

Young
20L2
Trust
Houston,
TX USA

N/A

John H. Young
Inc-10070

Jefferson
Pipeline Co-
700o/o

Jefferson
Transmission Co

1000/o

4605 POP, Ltd -
59.3180/o

John H.

Young
Houston,
TX, USA

N/A Director
&
Chairman

Director
Central Bank

President,
fohn H.
Young Inc.

7.650/o N/A

Kim D.

Wheless
Housto&
TX, USA

N/A Director,
President
& CEO

Director,
Chairman of
Central Bank
and
Administrator
ofTrust III

N/A 1.31o/o N/A N/A

John R.

Young
Houston,
TX, USA

Porffolio
Manager

Director Director
Cenral Bank

Sr. Por$olio
Mgr &
Principal
Orchard
Global Asset
Mst

3.680/o N/A N/A

PaEick C.

Reed
HoustorL
TX, USA

N/A EVP, CFO,

Secretary
Advisory
Director, EVP,
cFo &
Secretary-
Central Bank
and
Adminisrator
of Trust Ill

N/A None N/A N/A

Kathleen
Zinn
Houston,
TX USA

N/A Director N/A N/A <to/o N/A N/A

Director Director
CenEaI Bank

N/A <7o/o N/A N/AElizabeth
Young
Adanta,
GA USA

N/A

Director
Cennal Bank

President &
cEo
Foothill
Resources,
Inc.

1.090/o N/A N/AMichael
Fiuzat
Houston,
TX USA

N/A Director

Harry
Burrow
Houston,
TX USA

N/A Director Director
Central Bank

N/A 0.67o/o N/A N/A



CENTRAL BANCSHARES, rNC.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCHL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
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HARPER & PEARSON
COM PA NY P.C. "ff[l,'3,f-X'^''+!

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S R.EPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Central Bancshares, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Central Bancshares, Inc., which
comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders'equity and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Ma n a g e m e n fs R esp on s i bi I i ty fo r th e Con sol ida ted Fi n a ncia I Sta te m e n ts

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presenlation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statemenls that are free from rnaterial misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

A uditotrs Responsibi lity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the audito/s judgment including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal conhol relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presenbation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal conhol. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Central Bancshares, Inc. as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

*- ;A-* Lf'rc.A c-
Houston, Texas
March23,20t7

2
One Riverway' Suite 1900' Houston, Texas 77056-1973 '713.622.2310 ' 713.622.5613 fax

harperpearson.com



CENTRAL BANCSHARES, rNC.
CONSOLIDATED BAL/ANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 3L,2OL6 AND 2015

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Securities available for sale
Other investments
Other bank stock
Loans, net
Factored receivables, net
Premises and equipment, net
Bank owned life insurance
Accrued interest and fees receivable
Goodwill, net
Investment in subsidiary trust
Prepaid expenses, net
Other assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AN D SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities:
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits
Interest-bearing demand and savings deposits
Time deposib

Total Deposits

Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Notes payable
Junior subordinated debentures
Repurchase agreements
Accrued deferred compensation liabilities
Accrued reserves on factored receivables
Accrued interest payable
Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies

Shareholders' Equity:
Common stock
Capital surplus
Treasury stoc( at cost
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total Shareholders' Equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
3

$ 609,540,580 $ 564,532,682

2016

$ 26,438,967
91,372,107
4,308,895
2,79L,800

444,t45,195
17,285,t42
9,039,747

t0,454,027
2,036,352
l,7gg,57g

L7L,205
682,440
25,t24

$ 136,253,555
219,286,429
t57,389,L92

5t2,929,776

21,000,000
g,o6o,ooo

5,671,000
9,447,620
4,353,315
3,269,736

2t9,485
2,849,900

568,799,232

4,694
3,674,545

(3,875,850)
42,190,62t
(7,252,662)

2015

$ L2,802,467
100,897,154

5,100,000
2,269,600

,+01,016,064

19,322,054
9,360,106

10,150,374
1,903,851
7,799,579

L7l,t7L
720,562

30,700

$ 119,016,989
227,5t5,001
L34,101,897

474,633,887

28,800,000
6,060,000
5,671,000
2,049,090
3,778,298
3,168,043

161,985
7,504,248

525,826,551

4,694
3,7L2,570

(4,186,875)
39,238,234

(62,492)

40 747 348 38,706,131

$ 609,540,580 $ 564,532,682



CENTRAL BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

2016 2015
INTEREST INCOME:

Interest and fees on loans
Interest and fees on factored receivables
Securities available for sale
Other bank stock and other investments

Total Interest Income

INTEREST EXPENSE:

Interest-bearing demand and savings deposits
Time deposits
J unior subordinated debentures
Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Other borrowed funds

Total Interest Expense

NET INTEREST INCOME

PROVISION FOR POSSIBLE CREDIT LOSSES

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR

POSSIBLE CREDIT LOSSES

NONINTEREST INCOME:
Service charges
Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance
Net gain on sale of securities and other investments
Net gain on sale of loans
Net gain on sale of other real estate owned
Other income

Total Noninterest Income

NONINTEREST E(PENSES:
Salaries and employee benefits
Data processing expense
Depreciation and amortization
Occupancy expense
Directors and professional services fees
Equipment expense
Regulatory fees
Advertising, marketing and business development expense
Office expense
Other expenses

Total Noninterest Expenses

CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
4

$ 21,775,676
3,839,936
r,663,240

L12,875

$ 20,205,717
6,L67,489
1,657,099

64,514

27,391,727 28,094,2L7

606,976
t,t29,758

139,629
2t7,004

543,035
7,141,720

LL6,757
191,325

265 728 227 t42

2,359,095 2,2L9,979

75,032,632

400,000

25,874,238

450,000

24,632,632 25,424,238

525,437
303,653
t04,394
233,274
t07,228

502,335
297,783
L93,326
67,796

779 966 724,086

2,053,952 1,785,326

13,870,112
1,62L,157

77t,336
l,062,Log

944,143
2L6,572
420,47t
313,043
200,067
886,238

13,375,548
L,527,539

927,889
l,027,gg9

891,738
250,915
350,548
306,354
206,t37
860,140

20,305,248

$ 6.381.336



CENTRAL BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDAT D STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FORTHEYEARS ENDED D CEMBER31, 2016 AND 2015

2016 2015

$ 5,381,336 $ 7,484,768C-onsolidated Net Income

Other Comprehensive Loss:

Securities available for sale:
Change in net unrealized losses on securities available for sale

Reclassification adjustments, net gains included in net income

Total Other Comprehensive Loss

Tota I C-omprehensive Income

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
5

(L,085,776)
(104,394)

(L78,436)
(193,326)

(1,190,170) (377,762)

$ 5,191,166 $ 7,113,006
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CENTRAL BANCSHARES, rNC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Consolidated net income
Adjustments to reconcile consolidated net income to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for possible credit losses
Amortization of premiums on securities, net
Net gains on sales of securities, loans and other assets
Net gains on sales of ORE
Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance, net
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Accrued receivables and other assets
Prepaid expenses, net
Accrued deferred compensation liabilities
Accrued reserves on factored receivables
Accrued payables and other liabilities

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale
Proceeds from maturities and paydowns of securities available for sale
Purchase of securities available for sale
Sale (Purchase) of other investments
Purchase (Sale) of other bank stock
Purchase of bank owned life insurance
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned, net
Net increase in loans
Proceeds from sale of loans
Purchase of mortgage loans
Net decrease in factored receivables
Purchases of premises and equipment
Proceeds from sales of equipment and other assets

Net cash used by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net change in noninterest-bearing demand deposits
Net change in interest-bearing demand and savings deposits
Net change in time deposits
Net change in Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Net change in notes payable
Net change in repurchase agreements
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock
Distributions to shareholders

Net cash provided by financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
7

2016 2015

$ 6,381,336 $ 7,484,768

771,336
400,000
693,2t9

(339,032)
(t07,228)
(303,653)

(126,959)
38,L22

575,0t7
100,693
t78,227

t,879,742

8,267,078

5,299,559
19,536,060

(15,853,643)
791,105

(523,200)

705,975
(41,694,300)

6,079,582
(7,67L,L39)
7,429,165
(452,930)

3,316

17,236,566
(2,228,572)
23,287,297
(7,800,000)
3,ooo,ooo
7,398,530

273,000
(3,428,949)

13,636,500

12,802,467

927,889
450,000
644,270

(262,692)

(297,783)

24t,6L0
186,597

432,015
(4,5r4,3t7)

(102,L57)

(2,294,s68)

s,190,200

16,84O,208
21,635,L42

(3L,782,511)
(2,450,333)

463,700
(500,000)

(6L,597,425)
2,430,293

(3,572,t52)
13,468,394

(366,819)
1,570

(32,362,450\ (45,369,943)

19,793,005
36,332,028
(8,598,295)
(2,445,3tt)

250,000
t30,754
112,000

(2,s6s,927\

37,737,872 43,008,254

2,828,511

9,973,956

$ 26,438,967 $ 12,802,467



CENTRAL BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNNNG POLICIES

Nature of Operations - Central Bancshares, Inc. (the Company), through its wholly owned subsidiary
Central Bank (the Bank), provides a broad line of financial products and seruices to small and
medium sized businesses, municipalities, and consumers through its four banking offices in Harris
County, Texas. The BanKs primary source of revenue is from investing funds received from
depositors and from providing loans and other banking services to its customers.

The Bank, through its wholly owned subsidiary Advantage Business Capital, Inc. (Advantage) offers
accounts receivable factoring seruices to businesses primarily in Houston and within the state of
Texas. As of December 31, 2016, Advantage had 11 of 75 total clients headquartered outside the
state of Texas, which represents 23.8% of their outstanding receivable balance as of that date.

Regulatory Oversight - The Bank operates under a state charter and is a member of the Federal
Reserve Ban( and therefore is subject to regulation by the Texas Depaftment of Banking and the
Federal Reserve Board. The Company is subject to regulation by the Federal Reserve Board.

Basis of Presentation - The accompanying consolidated flnancial statements include the accounts of
the Company, the Bank, and Advantage. All significant intercompany transactions and accounts have
been eliminated. The Company has an investment in Central Bancshares Statutory Trust III (Trust
III), which issued trust preferred securities, The statutory trust is not consolidated, which is in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U,S.

GAAP). See Note 11 for additional disclosures related to the subsidiary trust.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform, in all material respects, to U.S.

GAAP and to prevailing practices within the financial services industry. The Company meets the
deflnition of Public Business Entity for financial repofting purposes under U.S. GAAP.

Subsequent Events - The Company has evaluated subsequent events for potential recognition and/or
disclosure through March 23, 2017, the date these consolidated financial statements were available
to be issued, and has determined that no material subsequent events have occurred that would
affect the information presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements or require
additional disclosure.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the repoted amounb of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated balance
sheet and repofted amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results
could differ from these estimates. Material estimates that are pafticularly susceptible to significant
change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for possible credit losses and
the estimated fair values of flnancial instruments.
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GENTRAL BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONINUED)

Cash Flow Repofting - Cash and cash equivalents include cash, interest-bearing and noninterest-
bearing deposits with other financial institutions that have an initial maturity of 90 days or less, and
federal funds sold. Cash flows are reported net for loans, securities available for sale, deposits and
shoft-term bonowings. Supplemental cash flow information follows:

2015 2015

$ 2,301,595Cash paid during the year for interest

Cash paid during the year for income bxes

Noncash foreclosure and repossession of
real estate in partial saUsfaction of debt

$ 75,192

$ 598,747 $

Reourchase Aoreements - The Company sells certain securities available for sale under agreements
to repurchase. The agreements are treated as collateralized financing transactions, and the
obligations to repurchase the securities sold are reflected as a liability in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. The dollar amount of the securities underlying the agreements remains
in the asset accounts.

Securities Available for Sale - Securities are accounted for on a trade date basis. Premiums and
discounts are amoftized and accreted to operations using the level-yield method of accounting,
adjusted for prepayments as applicable. Interest earned on these assets is included in interest
income. The specific identification method of accounting is used to compute gains or losses on the
sales of these assets.

Securities available for sale are carried at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses are excluded from
earnings and reported as a separate component of shareholders'equity until realized. Securities
within the available for sale portfolio may be used as part of management's asseVliability strategy
and may be sold in response to changes in liquidity, interest risk, prepayment risk or other similar
economic factors.

Securities classified as available for sale are generally evaluated for other-than-temporary
impairment (OTII). In determining OTTI, management considers many factors, including: (i) the
length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (ii) the flnancial
condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (iii) the intent and the ability of the Company
to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated
recovery in fair value. The assessment of whether an other-than-temporary decline exists involves a

high degree of subjectivity and judgment and is based on the information available to management
at a point in Ume.
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CENTRAL BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF STGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONINUED)

When OTTI occurs, the amount of the OTTI recognized in earnings depends on whether the
Company intends to sell the security or will be required to sell the security before recovery of its
amotized cost basis less any cunent-period credit loss. If the Company intends to sell the security
or it is more likely that the Company will be required to sell the security before recovery of its
amoftized cost basis less any current-period credit loss, the OTTI shall be recognized in earnings
equal to the entire difference between the investment's amoftized cost basis and ib fair value at the
consolidated balance sheet date. If the Company does not intend to sell the security and it is not
likely that the Company will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amoftized cost
basis less any cunent-period loss, the OTTI shall be separated into the amount representing the
credit loss and the amount related to all other factors. The amount of the total OTTI related to the
credit loss is determined based on the present value of cash flows expected to be collected and is

recognized in earnings. The amount of the total OTTI related to other factors shall be recognized in
other comprehensive income. The preMous amortized cost basis less the OTTI recognized in
earnings shall become the new amoftized cost basis of the investment.

Other Bank Stock - Investments in stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), Federal Reserve
Bank (FRB), and Independent Bankers Financial Corporation (TIB) are considered to be restricted as
to their marketability. Because no ready market exists for these investments, they have no quoted
market value, and management believes the par value is ultimately recoverable, the Company's
investments in these stocks are carried at cost. Dividends received on other bank stock are recorded
as interest income when received.

Loans and Factored Receivables - Loans are stated at unpaid principal balances, less the allowance
for possible credit losses and net deferred loan fees. Interest on loans is recognized by using the
simple interest method.

Factored receivables represent advances on certain receivables obtained under lending agreements
originated by the Company. Under these agreements, the Company purchases these receivables for
a percentage of the total receivable owed to the customer. The Company remits the remaining
balance or reserves, less a fee, when the receivable is collected. Receivables are stated at receivable
balances less the allowance for possible credit losses. Factoring fees are earned and recognized
based upon the amount and length of time the underlying receivables are outstanding.

Nonrefundable Fees and Direct Costs Associated with Lendino Activities - Generally, loan origination
and commitment fees on non-residential mortgage loans are deferred and amortized as a yield
adjustment over the lives of the related loans using the straight-line method. Origination fees and
direct costs on residenUal mortgage loans are deferred and amortized as a yield adjustment over the
related lives of loans on a straight line basis. Amoftization of deferred loan fees is discontinued when
a loan is placed on nonaccrual status.

10



CENTRAL BANCSHARE+ rNC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNING POLTCTES (CONnNUED)

Nonperforming Loans - Included in the nonpeforming category are loans which have been
categorized by management as impaired because of delinquency status or because collection of
interest is doubtful, and loans which have been restrucfured to provide a reduction in the interest
rate or a deferral of interest or principal payments.

When the payment of principal or interest on a loan is delinquent for 90 days, or earlier in some
cases, the loan is placed on nonaccrual status, unless the loan is in the process of collection and the
underlying collateral fully supports the carrying value of the loan. If the decision is made to continue
accruing interest on the loan, periodic reviews are made to confirm the accruing status of the loan
and the probability that the Company will collect all principal and interest amounts outstanding.

When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, interest accrued and uncollected during the current year
prior to the judgment of uncollectibility, is charged to operations unless the loan is well secured with
collateral values sufficient to ensure collection of both principal and interest. Generally, any
payments received on nonaccrual loans are applied flrst to outstanding loan amounts, reducing the
recorded investment in the loan, and next to the recovery of charged-off loan amounts. Any excess
is treated as recovery of lost interest. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and
interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

A loan is deflned as impaired if, based on current information and events, it is probable that the
Company will be unable to collect all amounts due in accordance with the original contractual terms
of the loan agreement, including scheduled principal and interest payments.

The allowance for possible credit losses related to impaired loans is determined based on the
difference of carrying value or the recorded investment, of loans and the present value of expected
cash flows discounted at the loan's eflective interest rate or, as a practical expedient, the loan's
observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

Interest income received on impaired loans is either applied against principal or realized as interest
income, according to management's judgment as to the collectability of principal.

Troubled Debt Restructurinos - The Company will classifo a loan as a troubled debt restructuring if
both (i) the borrower is experiencing financial difficulties and (ii) the borrower has been granted a

concession. Concessions may include interest rate reductions or below market interest rates,
principal forgiveness, restructuring amortization schedules and other actions intended to minimize
potential losses. Interest is generally accrued on such loans in accordance with the new terms.

Allowance for Possible Credit Losses - The allowance for possible credit losses is a reserue
established through a provision for possible credit losses charged to expense, which represents
management's best estimate of probable losses that have been incurred within the existing portfolio
of loans, including factored and other receivables. All losses are charged to the allowance for
possible credit losses when the loss actually occurs or when a determination is made that a loss is
likely to occur. Recoveries are credited to the allowance at the time of recovery.

11



CENTRAL BANCSHARES, rNC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONNNUED)

The allowance, in the judgment of management, is necessary to reserve for the estimated loan
losses and risks inherent in the loan portfolio and is calculated in accordance with U.S, GAAP and
regulatory guidance, Therefore, the level of the allowance reflects management's continuing
evaluation of industry concentrations, specific credit risks, loan loss experience, current loan
portfolio quality, present economic, political and regulatory conditions, and unidentifled losses
inherent in the current loan portfolio, as well as trends in the foregoing. Portions of the allowance
may be allocated for specific credits; however, generally, the entire allowance is available for any
credit that, in management's judgment, should be charged-off. While management utilizes its best
judgment and information available, the ultimate adequacy of the allowance is dependent upon a

variety of factors often beyond the Company's control, including the performance of the
Company's loan portfolio, the economy, changes in interest rates, and the view of the regulatory
authorities toward loan classifications.

Concentrations of Risk - The Company's investments are subject to various levels of risk associated
with economic and political events beyond management's control. Consequently, management's
judgment as to the level of losses that currently exist or may develop in the future involves the
consideration of current and anticipated conditions and their potential effects on the Company's
investments. In determining fair value of these investments, management obtains information,
which is considered reliable, from third parties in order to value its investments. Due to the level of
uncertainty related to changes in the value of investment securities, it is possible that changes in
risks could materially impact the amounts reflected herein.

Generally, the Company's loans, loan commitments, and letters of credit to customers have been
granted to customerc in the Company's market area, which includes Harris, Foft Bend, Montgomery,
and surrounding counties. The Company's loans are typically secured by specific items of collateral
including real property, consumer assets, and business assets. Although the Company has a
diversifled loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its debtors' ability to honor their contracts is

dependent on local economic conditions. Concentrations of credit by loan segment and class are set
forth in Notes 5 and 6. It is the Company's policy to not extend credit to any single borrower or
group of related borrowers in excess of the Bank's legal lending limit as defined by state and federal
banking regulations.

Interest Rate Risk - The Company is principally engaged in providing short-term commercial loans
with interest rates that fluctuate with various market indices, intermediate-term flxed rate real estate
loans, and consumer loans. These loans are primarily funded through short-term demand deposits
and longer-term certiflcates of deposit with flxed rates. The Company may borrow against available
lines of credit to fund additional loan growth, or other investment strategies, should the need arise.
Deposits that are not utilized to fund loans are invested in securities that meet the Company's
investment quality guidelines. Unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale that result
from changing market interest rates are reflected in other comprehensive income.

A portion of the Company's investments that are available for sale have contractual maturity dates
through the year 2045, bear fixed rates of interest and are collateralized by residential mortgages.
Repayment of principal on these mortgage-backed securities is primarily dependent on the cash
flows from payments made on the underlying mortgage collateral to the bond issuer. Market rate
increases can result in reduced prepayments, extending the Company's original anticipated holding
period and thus increasing interest rate risk over time.

12



CENTRAI BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONNNUED)

Premises and Equipment - Premises and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method of accounting over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. Land is carried at cost, Leasehold improvements are
amoftized on a straight-line basis over the periods of the leases incJuding extensions or the
estimated useful lives, whichever is shofter. Gains and losses on dispositions are included in other
noninterest income.

Bank Owned Life Insurance - The Company owns cash value life insurance policies which pay
benefits to the Company upon the death of the named insured. Increases to the cash surrender
value of the policies are noncash earnings and are recorded in noninterest income.

Goodwill - The Company has recorded goodwill related to the 1982 acquisition of the Bank and more
recent acquisitions related to its factoring operations. Management peforms a regular impairment
assessment of goodwill and has determined the goodwill recorded at December 31, 20L6 and 2015
is not impaired.

Income Taxes - The Company files consolidated federal and state income tax returns with its
subsidiary. On January l, 2013, the Company elected Subchapter S status under the guidelines of
the Internal Revenue Code for federal tax repofting purposes, and all items of income and expense
pass through to the shareholders. Therefore, no provisions for federal income taxes are now
required. State margin tax is recorded in other noninterest expense.

The Company believes that all significant tax positions utilized by the Company will more likely than
not be sustained upon examination. As of December 37, 2076, the tax years that remain subject to
examination by the major tax jurisdictions under the statute of limitations are from the year 2013
forward (with limited exceptions). Tax penalties and interest, if any, would be accrued as incurred
and would be classified as tax expense in the statements of income.

Prepaid Expenses - Prepaid expenses are amortized into noninterest expense over the estimated
useful life of the expenditure.

Other Real Estate Owned and Reoossessed Assets - Real estate and other assets acquired through
repossession or foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at the fair value of the asset
less any selling costs, establishing a new cost basis. Outstanding loan balances are reduced to
reflect this value through charges to the allowance for possible credit losses. Subsequent to
repossession or foreclosure, the asset is carried at the lower of its new cost basis or fair value, less
estimated costs to sell. Subsequent adjustments to reflect changes in value above or below the
recorded amounts are recognized in income in the period such determinations are assessed.
Required developmental costs associated with foreclosed property under construction are capitalized
and considered in determining the fair value of the property. Operating income of these assets, net
of related expenses, and gains and losses on their disposition are included in other noninterest
rncome or expense.

Accountino for Stock-Based Comoensation Stock-based compensation is recognized as
compensaUon cost in the consolidated statements of income based on the fair value on the date of
the grant.

13



CENTRAL BANCSHAR.ES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONINUED)

ComDrehensive Income - Comprehensive income includes all changes in shareholders'equity during
a period, except those resulting from transactions with shareholders. Comprehensive income
includes net income and the effect of changes in the net unrealized gain/loss on securities available
for sale.

Fair Value Measurements - In general, fair values of flnancial instruments are based upon quoted
market prices, where available. If such quoted market prices are not available, fair value is based
upon intemally developed models that primarily Us, as inputs, observable market-based
parameters. Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that financial instruments are recorded
at fair value. These adjustments may include amounts to reflect counterparty credit quality and the
entityt creditworthiness, among other things, as well as unobservable parameters. Any such
valuation adjustments are applied consistently over time.

The Company has not elected to account for any flnancial assets or liabilities as trading instruments,
for which changes in market value on these instruments would be recorded in the Company's
consolidated statements of income.

Transfers of Financial Assets - Transfers of flnancial assets are accounted for as sales when control
over the asseb has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered
when (i) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (ii) the transferee obtains the right (free
of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the
transfened assets, and (iii) the Company does not maintain eflective control over the transferred
assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their mafurity.

If a transfer of an entire financial asset, a group of entire financial assets, or a paticipating interest
in an entire flnancial asset does not meet the conditions for sale treatment, or if a transfer of a
portion of an entire financial interest does not meet the definition of a participating interest, the
transferor and the transferee shall account for the transfer as a secured borrowing with pledge of
collateral. The transferor shall continue to report the hansferred flnancial assets in its flnancial
statements with no change in their measurement.

Reclassiflcations - Cerbain reclassiflcations were made to the 2015 consolidated flnancial statement
presentation in order to conform to the 2016 financial statement presentation with no effect on
repoted results of operations or equity.
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GENTRAL BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2016 AND 2015

NOTE 2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2076 and 2015 are as follows:

2015 2015

Cash

Noninterest-bearing due from banks
Interest-bearing due from banks

$ L,L30,446
3,329,745

2L,979,776

$ 1,480,552
3,096,42t
9,225,494

$ 26,438,967 $ t2,802,467

Reserue Requirements

The Bank, as a correspondent of the Federal Reserue System, is required to maintain reserves for
the purpose of facilitating the implementaUon of monetary policy. These reserues may be
maintained in the form of balances at the Federal Reserve Bank or by vault cash. The Bank's reserue
requirements were $6,798,000 and $6,399,000 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Accordingly, cash balances were restricted to that extent.

Uninsured Gsh

All cash and cash equivalents are maintained with major financial institutions in the United States.
Deposits with these financial institutions may exceed the amount of insurance provided on such
deposits; however, these deposits typically may be redeemed upon demand and therefore, bear
minimal risk. In monitoring this credit risk, the Company periodically evaluates the stability of the
financial institutions with which it has deposits. At December 31, 2016 and 2015 the Company has
no deposits in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured financial instituUons which
exceed the amount insured by the FDIC. In addition, the Company has $52,597 and $65,207 in cash
deposits at the FHLB which are not insured by the FDIC at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. The Company also carries balances at the Federal Reserue Bank which are not
considered at risk for loss.
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CENTRAL BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 3L,2Ot6 AND 2015

NOTE 3 SECURMES AVAII.ABLE FOR SALE

The amoftized cost and estimated fair values of securities available for sale at December 37,20t6
and 2015 are summarized in the following table.

Amoftized
cost

Gross
unrealized

garns

Gross
unrealized

losses

Estimated
fair

wlue
2016

U.S. Government Agency
Mortgage-backed securitjes $ 58,668,419

Municipal bonds 26,972,053
Com munity Reinvestment

$ 22,t98 $
t23,467

(847,864)
(376,383)

$ 57,842,753
26,659,137

6,870,217

$ 97,372,107

2015
U.S. GorcrnmentAgency

Mortgage-backed securities $ 63,437,506
Municipal bonds 29,722,778
Com munity Reinvestment

Mortga ge-backed securities

Amounts Maturing In:

1 year or less
After 1 year through 5 years
After 5 years through 10 years
After 10 years

7,044,297 25,667

$ 92,624,769 $ t7t,332

$ 237,656 $
369,592

(496,115)
(44,945)

$ 63,L79,047
29,446,415

Mortga ge-backed securities 8,399,362 33,240 8,271,692

$100,959,646 $ 639,478 $100,897,154

Maturities

The amoftized cost and estimated fair value of securities at December 3L, 2016, by contractual
maturities, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because
issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

)

Amortized
cost

Estimated
fair value

$ 4,876,30L
15,586,323
L7,L89,074
54,873,071

$ 92,624,769

$ 4,889,443
15,551,114
15,923,375
54,008,175

$ 9L,372,L07
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CENTRAL BANCSHARES, rNC.
NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 3 SECURmES AVAil-ABLE FOR SALE (CONINUED)

Realized Gains

Realized gains on sales of securities during the years ended December 31, 2OL6 and 2015 are as
follows:

2076 2015

Realized gains $ 104,394 $ 215,559

Unrealized Losses

For securities in an unrealized loss position, the following table shows gross unrealized losses and
fair value by length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss
position. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, there were 189 and 85 securities, respectively, in a
continuous loss position as follows:

Less than twelve months Twelve months or more
Gross

unrealized
losses

Estimated

frir
yalue

Gross
unrealized

losses

Estimated
fair

value
2016

U.S. Government Agency
Mortga ge- backed securites

Municipal bonds

Community Reinvestment
Mortgage- backed securities

2015
U.S. Government Agency

Moftgage-backed securities
Municipal bonds
Community Reinvestment

Mortgage- backed securities

$ 10,358,457

$ 21,693,193 $ 130,590 $ 5,582,6,16

6,629,607

$ 680,430
368,585

$43,042,657
15,101,993

3,404,760

$ 61,549,410

$ t67,434
7,799

$ 7,296,260
465,113

2,607,084

$ 365,525
44,945

12 18 5,734,015 1,048,083

$ 531,988 $ 34,056,815 $ 6,630,729

Management does not have the intent to sell any of the securities classifled as available for sale in
the preceding table, and believes that it is more likely than not that the Company will not have to
sell any of these securities before a recovery of cost. The unrealized losses are attributable
primarily to changes in market interest rates relative to those available when the securities were
acquired. The fair value of these securities is expected to recover as the securities reach their
maturity or re-pricing date, or if market rates for such investments decline.
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CENTRAL BANCSHARES, rNC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 3 SECURmES AVAil-ABLE FOR SALE (CONINUED)

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, management does not believe that any of these securities are
impaired due to reasons of credit quality and believes the impairments detailed in the preceding
table are temporary, Accordingly, no impairment loss has been realized in the Company's
consolidated statements of income for the years then ended.

Pledged Securities

At December 3t, 2Ot6 and 2015, ceftain securities were pledged to secure the following liabilities.
The carrying amount of these securities is summarized as follows:

20t6 201s
Pledged to secure:

Public funds on deposit
Repurchase agreemenb

Tobl securities pledged $ 51,968,143 $ 60,385,025

NOTE 4 OTHER INVESTMENTS AND OTHER BANK STOCK

Mutual Fund

During 2012, Company management approved an investment in a qualified investment under the
Community Reinvestment Act (CRA) of up to $1,000,000. The Company classified this investment as
available for sale and recorded the investment at fair market value.

The Mutual Fund was sold on February 25,2015. Activity in the Mutual Fund for the year ended
December 31, 2015 is as follows:

2015

$ 40,513,830
1.1,4s4,3t3

$ 56,572,570
3,812,455

Investment cost basis, beginning of year
Current year diMdend and capital gains reinvestnent
Unrealized loss at end of year

Sales
Realized loss

$ 526,899
797

(505,463)
(22,233\

Market ralue, end of year $

R eve rce Repu rcha se Ag ree m en t

During 2011, Company management approved investments in reverse repurchase agreemenb of up
to $5,000,000. The Company invests funds on a short-term basis into reverse repurchase
agreements through a third pafi with U.S. Government Small Business Administration loans as
collateral. At December 37, 2016 and 2015, the Company held $3,758,895 and $5,000,000,
respectively, in this investment which is recorded at cost as management believes cost and fair value
are not significantly different.
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CENTRAL BANCSHARES, rNC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 4 OTHER TNVESTMENTS AND OTHER BANK STOCK (CONINUED)

Inves tm e n t i n Pa rtnersh i p

NOTE 5

During 2012, the Company committed to invest capital of up to $1,000,000 in a limited partnership.
The partnership had issued capital calls amounting to 55o/o and 10o/o at December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively. The Company has an investment in the partnership of $550,000 and $100,000 at
December 31,2016 and 2015, respectively, which is recorded at cost.

Other Bank Stock

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company held $1,806,000 and $1,387,800, respectively, of
FHLB stock. Banks that are members of the FHLB are required to maintain a stock investment in the
FHLB calculated as a percentage of aggregate outstanding moftgages, outstanding FHLB advances,
and other financial instruments. FHLB stock is capital stock that is bought from and sold to the FHLB

at $100 par value. Both stock and cash dividends may be received on FHLB stock and are recorded
when received as interest income.

At December 3L, 2016 and 2015, the Company held $954,000 and $849,000, respectively, of FRB

stock. During 2074, the Bank became a member of the Federal Reserue System and is required to
subscribe to FRB stock in specific ratios to the Bank's equity. Although the par value of the stock is

$100 per share, member banks pay only $50 per share at the time of purchase with an
understanding that the other half of the subscription amount is subject to call at any time. The stock
does not provide the owner with control or flnancial interest in the FRB, is not transferable, and
cannot be used as collateral.

At December 3L,2016 and 2015, the Company held $31,800 of TIB stock.

LOANS AND FACIORED RECEIVABLES

Loans

Loans by portfolio segment at December 37,20L6 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

2016 2015

Real estate
Commercial and industrial
Nondepository institutions
Consumer
Other

Less deferred loan fees and costs, net
Less allowance for possible credit losses

on loans

$ 383,646,5.1O

28,060,536
27,594,83L

843,500
7,729,22t

$347,150,070
3L,669,078
20,980,424

1,372,564
000

447,974,628

(266,725)

(3,562,708)
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CENTRAL BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 5 LOANS AND FACTORED RECETVABLES (CONINUED)

Loan Concentrations

The following concentrations are included in the real estate category as follows:

2016 201s
Residential mortgages:

First lien mortgages
Second lien mortgages
Purchased moftgage loans and related net premium

$ 7L7,045,109
58,687,024
L9,488,870

$ 100,202,831

62,370,176
14,950,377

$ 195,222,003 $ t77,523,324

Portfolio Segments and Loan Classes

The Company has cedain lending policies and procedures in place that are designed to maximize
loan income within an acceptable level of risk. Management reviews and approves these policies and
procedures on a regular basis. The Company's loans are segmented by type as noted in the
preceding tables. Diversification of the loan portfolio is a means of managing the risks associated
with fluctuaUons in economic conditions.

In order to manage the diversification of the portfolio, the Company also sub-segments loans into
classes. The real estate loan segment is sub-segmented into classes that primarily include
commercial real estate moftgage loans, construction and land development loans, 1-4 family
residential loans, and multi-family residential loans. The Company sub-segments consumer loans
into classes that primarily include automobiles, and other consumer loans. Management has not
identified any significant sub-segments, or classes, for the other loan segments. Information and risk
management practices specific to the Companyt loan segments and classes follows.

Real estate - The Company makes commercial real estate mortgage loans which are primarily
viewed as cash flow loans and secondarily as loans secured by real estate. The properties securing
the Company's commercial real estate moftgage loans can be owner occupied or non-owner
occupied. Concentrations within the various types of commercial propefties are monitored by
management in order to assess the risks in the portfolio.

The repayment of these loans is largely dependent on the successful operation of the property
securing the loan or the business conducted on the property securing the loan. Accordingly,
repayment of these loans may be subject to adverse conditions in the real estate market or the
economy to a greater extent than other types of loans. The Company seeks to minimize these risks
in a variety of ways in connection with underwriting these loans, including giving careful
consideration to the property's operaUng history, future operating projections, current and projected
occupancy, location and physical condition.
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CENTRAL BANCSHARES, rNC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 3t,2Ot6 AND 2015

NOTE 5 LOANS AND FACTORED RECETVABLES (CONINUED)

Construction and land development loans include both owner and non-owner occupied properties
and are subject to ceftain risks attributable to the fact that loan funds are advanced over the
construction phase and the project can be subject to cost and value changes prior to its completion.
Construction loans are generally based upon estimates of costs and value associated with the
completed p@ect with repayment dependent, in paft, on the success of the ultimate project rather
than the ability of the borrower or guarantor to repay the loan. Third-party appraisals are obtained
prior to loan origination to confirm as completed values. Terms for construction and development
loans generally coincide with the estimated time to complete construction, market the completed
property for sale or lease, or facilitate occupancy by the owner. The Company has underwriting and
funding procedures designed to address what it believes to be the risks associated with such loans;
however, no assurance can be given the procedures will prevent losses resulting from the risks
described above. The Company monitors and sets limits on total construction, unimproved land and
land development ('CLDI loans as measured as a percentage of risk based capital. Through
deliberate reductions in CLD originations, concentrations reflected a declining trend in the final six
months of 2016 and it is management's intent to continue the downward trend through 2017.

The Company's real estate lending activities also include the origination of first lien and second lien
1-4 family residential and flrst lien multi-family residential loans. The terms of these loans typically
range from five to thirty years and are secured by the properties flnanced. For flrst lien moftgages,
and for most second lien moftgages, the Company requires the borrowers to maintain mortgage title
insurance and hazard insurance. In order to reduce concentration ris( from time to time the
Company sells a selection of 1-4 family residential loans from its portfolio into the secondary market
without recourse and with seruicing released.

Commercial and industrial - The Company's commercial and indusbial loans represent credit
extended to small to medium sized businesses generally for the purpose of providing working capital
and equipment purchase financing, Commercial and industrial loans often are dependent on the
profitable operations of the borrower. These credits are primarily made based on the identified cash
flow of the borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the borrower. Most
commercial and industrial loans are secured by the assets being financed or other business assets
such as accounts receivable or inventory and may also incorporate a personal guarantee. Some
shofter term loans may be extended on an unsecured basis. In the case of loans secured by
accounts receivable, the availability of funds for the repayment of these loans may be substantially
dependent on the ability of the borrower to collect amounts due from its customers. The cash flows
of borrowers may not be as expected and the collateral securing these loans may fluctuate,
increasing the risk associated with this loan segment. As a result of the additional complexities,
variables, and risks, commercial loans typically require more thorough underwriting and servicing
than other types of loans.

Nondepository institutions - Loans to nondepository institutions primarily include extensions of credit
under guidance lines to mortgage and finance companies. Often, the collateral securing these credit
lines consists of an assignment of notes receivable that are secured by first liens on single family
homes and to a lesser extent improved and unimproved commercial real estate. Repayment of these
credit lines is derived from the cash flows received by the borrowers, which is primarily generated
through payments received on the assigned loans. The Company underwrites these credits based
upon the financial stability of the borrower and will look directly to the cash flows from the single
family home loans to repay the debt should the borrowers default.
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CENTRAL BANCSHAR.ES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2016 AND 2015

NOTE 5 LOANS AND FACTORED RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Consumer - The Company's consumer loans include automobile loans and other loans to include,
personal loans (collateralized and uncollateralized) and deposit account collateralized loans. The
terms of these loans typically range from 1 to 7 years and vary based on the nature of collateral and
size of the loan. Consumer loan collections are dependent on the borrowe/s continuing flnancial
stability, and thus more likely to be adversely affected by job loss, illness, or personal bankuptcy.
Futhermore, the application of various federal and state laws may limit the amount which can be
recovered on such loans. To monitor and manage consumer loan risk, policies and procedures are
developed and modified, as deemed appropriate by management. Other consumer loans also include
overdraft lines of credit principally extended to individuals.

Other - Included in other loans are loans to municipal utility districts. The loan term is typically one
year. The repayment of the loans are dependent on the municipaliUes' issuance and sale of
municipal bonds.

Loan Participations Purchased and fuld

At December 31, 2016 and 2015 the Company had outstanding balances of loan participations sold
in the amount of $7,263 ,374 and $4,205,607, respectively. There were $3,982,062 and $3,310,059,
respectively, of loan pafticipations purchased outstanding at December 37, 2016 and 2015.

Loans Purchased and Held

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had $19,198,823 and $14,778,515, respectively, of
residential mortgage loans purchased from third pafties, net of unamortized premiums of $3t2,152
and $171,862, and unamortized discount accretion of 22,705 and $-0-, respectively,

Loans Purchasd and *cuitized

During 2016 and 2015, the Company purchased a total of $-0- and $3,512,152, respectively, in
loans from other financial instituUons. Subsequent to purchase, the loans were securitized so they
are recorded as securities available for sale as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 (see Note 3). The
securiUes are a qualified investment under the Community Reinvestrnent Act,

Loans Sold

During 2016, the Company sold one group of single family residential loans originated by the Bank,
including accrued interest, totaling $5,846,308 for a gain on sale of $233,274. During 2015, the
Company sold one group of single family residential loans including accrued interest totaling
$2,362,487, for a gain on sale of $67,796. All loans were sold without recourse and with seruicing
released.
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CENTRAL BANCSHARES, rNC.
NOTES TO CONSOTIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 5 LOANS AND FACTORED RECEIVABLES (CONINUED)

Past Due and Nonaarual Loans

The following is an analysis of past due and nonaccrual loans, segregated by loan class, as of
December 3L,20L6 and 2015.

30 or more
days past

due and still
accruing Nonaccrual Total loans

2016
Commercial real estate

mortgage
Construction and land

development
1-4 family residential
M ulti-fa mily residential
Commercial and industrial
I'londepository i nstitutions
Consumer - automobiles
Consumer - other
Other

$ 105,892,943 $ $ $ 105,892,943

28,L40

$447,946,488 $ $ 29,12+0 $447,974,628

Current and
accruinq

76,t95,409
195,222,003

6,308,045
28,060,536
27,694,83t

225,207
618,293

7,729,22L

76,223,549
795,222,003

6,309,045
28,060,536
27,694,831

225,207
518,293

7,729,221

2015

Commercial real estate
mortgage

Construction and land

development
1-4 family residential
Multi-family residential
Commercial and indusfial
Nondepository institutions
Consumer - aubmobiles
Consumer - other
Other

$ 85,735,573 $2,670,000 $

76,384,549
t77,L30,679

4,351,765
31,669,078
20,980,424

366,269
1,oo2,5gg
3,444,000

450,000
392,646

3,707

$ 88,1105,573

76,869,407
177,523,325

4,351,765
3t,669,078
20,980,424

369,976
1,oo2,5gg
3,444,000

34,858

$40L,0&,925 $!eEl $___14,8sq $ 404,616,136

Nonaccrual Loan Investment and Interest

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the recorded investment in nonaccrual loans is not considered
materially different from the amounts reflected in the table above, as the accrued interest
receivable, deferred fees, and specific allowances for possible credit losses are not considered
material for these loans.

The Company had no loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing interest at December 31,
2076. At December 31, 2015, the Company had one construction and land development loan that
was greater than 90 days past due and still accruing in the amount of $450,000. Interest foregone
on nonaccrual loans was $ 8,317 and $6,463 for the years ended December 3L, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. Interest income recorded on a cash basis was $-0- and $521,870 for the years ended
December 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 5 LOANS AND FACTORED RECETVABLES (CONINUED)

Troubled Debt Restructuring

During the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had no loans modified under
troubled debt restructuring.

Factored Receivables

Factored receivables at December 3L,20L6 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

201.6 2015

Receivables purchased

Less allowance for possible credit losses on
factored receivables

$ 18,083,813

(798,67t)

$ 20,044,380

(722,326)

$ t7,285,L42 $ t9,322,054

The factored receivables are not collateral for loans to the Company's customers; rather, the
receivables are purchased outright. Generally the receivables are purchased with recourse to the
Company's customer; however, the Company assumes the credit risk based upon underwriting
criteria established for both the customer and the customert clients. The Company discounts the
receivable purchased and retains a reserve as a percentage of outstanding receivables to cover
unpaid receivables, which is determined by management based upon experience and other
underwriting criteria.

Factored Receiua bles Participations

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had factored receivables participations outstanding
as follows:

2015 2015

Participations purchased, end of year $ 3,t74,034 $ 2,333,050

Pafticipations sold, end of year $ 2,800,951 $ 4,093,478
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 5 LOANS AND FACTORED RECETVABLES (CONINUED)

Factored Receivables Reserues

The following table shows reserues that may be payable to the Company's customers upon timely
receipt of payment on the factored receivables, and deferred revenue from fees to be recognized as
the factored receivables are collected at December 31, 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015

Customer reserves
Deferred revenues

Less than 30 days
31 to 90 days
91 or more days

$ 2,759,208
509,528

$ 2,7t0,571
457

Accrued reserves on factored receivables $ 3,268,736 $ 3,168,043

Fa cto red Rece i ua bl es Ag i n g

At December 31, 2016 arrd 2015, the age of the Companyt factored receivables is as follows:

2016 2015

$ 7,568,448
9,345,480
1,169,88s

$ 9,745,763
9,475,028

823,589

$ 18,083,813 $ 20,044,380

Management performs an evaluation of factored receivables 91 or more days past due to determine
a course of action. The Company has the option to sell the receivables back to the customers, or
charge the amount against the customers'reseryes.

NOTE 6 ALLOWANCE FOR POSSIBLE CREDIT LOSSES

For purposes of determining the allowance for possible credit losses, the Company considers the
loans in its portfolio by segment, class, and risk grade. Management uses significant judgment to
determine the estimation method that flts the credit risk characteristics of each portfolio segment or
class. To facilitate the assessment of risk, management reviews repofts related to loan production,
loan quality, concentrations of credit, loan delinquencies, and nonpeforming and potential problem
loans. The Company utilizes an independent third paty loan review service to review the credit risk
assigned to loans on a periodic basis and the results are presented to management for review.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 6 ALLOWANCE FOR POSSTBLE CREDTT LOSSES (CONINUED)

Rollforward of the Allowance for Possible Credit Losses

The following table presents a detail of the activity in the allowance for possible credit losses
segregated by portfolio segment for the years ending December 37, 2016 and 2015.

Balance,
beginning of

vear Provbions Charqe-offs Recoveries

Balance,
end of
year

20L6
Real estate $ 2,725,479
Conrrercial and industr'nl 205,718
l,l,ondepository institut'rons 188,578

Consuner 5,841
Other 24,907

Factored receivables
3,150,523

722,326

Total

$ 3L1,972
(3,407)
37,562

5,668
38,205

390,000
10,000

$ 30,000

(10,250) 2,435

$ 3,067,451
2O2,3rl
226,140

3,694
63,112

$

$j,912 . $lgg,qqq $_G199!) $__199,43s $ 4,361,37e

(10,250)
(1,6ss)

32,435
68,000

3,562,708
798,67L

$ 2,725,479
205,7L8
188,578

5,841
24,907

2015

Real estate
Conrrerch I a nd industria I

Nondepository institutions

Consuner
Other

$ 2,459,501
192,323

79,323
11,988

$ 256,354
13,483

109,255
(3,999)
24,907

400,000
50,000

$
(88)

(5,554)

$ 9,524

3,4t6

Factored receivables
2,743,235

700,603

(5,652)
(89,387)

t?.,94O 3,150,523
722,32651 110

Total $ 3,,143,838 $j9,99q $ (es,03e) $_Z1&q $ 3,872,84e

Alloation of Allowance for Possible Credit Losses

The total allowance is available to absorb losses from any category of loans or factored receivables.
The allocation of the allowance for the loan portfolio is based on the dollar amount of loans in each
segment rather than an analysis of specific loans. The allocation is made for analytical purposes and
is not necessarily indicative of the categories in which future losses may occur.

Significant Charge-off and Subsequent Recovery

During 2008, the Company identified a signiflcant commercial and industrial credit relationship as
impaired, resulting in a $2,131,908 charge-off to the allowance for possible credit losses, which has
subsequently been fully recovered. The previously charged off principal was fully recovered during
2014. During 2015, interest income in the amount of $502,994 representing recovery of interest
amounts due under the terms of contract was recorded related to this relationship. During the year
ended December 31, 2016 no amounts were received related to this relationship. Subsequent to
year end December 37,2016, the Company received $532,600 related to this relationship which was
recorded as interest income.
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NOTE 6 ALLOWANCE FOR POSSIBLE CREDTT LOSSES (CONINUED)

Risk Grading

As part of the on-going monitoring of the credit quality of the Companyt loan portfolio and
methodology for calculating the allowance for possible credit losses, management assigns and tracks
loan grades to be used as credit quality indicators. The following is a general description of the loan
grades used as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Pass - This category of assets are considered"pass"which indicates prudent underwriting and a

normal amount of risk. The range of risk within these credits can vary from little to no risk with cash
securing a credit, to a level of risk that requires a strong secondary source of repayment on the
debt. Pass credits with a higher level of risk may be to borrowers that are highly leveraged, under-
capitalized or in an industry or economic area that is known to carry a higher level of risk, volatility,
or susceptibility to weaknesses in the economy.

Management Attention - Included in this category are assets referred to as"management attention"
which appear prudently underwritten, are performing, but a negative trend may have been defined,
or weaknesses identified, that require special monitoring. This may be due to the lack of credit or
collateral information that would allow a credit quality analysis of the credit, or may be due to the
borrowing entity being relatively new without much outside flnancial support.

OAEM - Assets in this category contain more than the normal amount of risk and are referred to as
"other assets especially mentionedi or OAEM, in accordance with regulatory guidelines. These
assets possess clearly identiflable temporary weaknesses or trends that, if not corrected or revised,
will result in a condition that exposes the Company to a higher level of risk of loss.

Substandard - Assets in this category are"substandard"in accordance with regulatory guidelines
and of unsatisfactory credit quality with well-defined weaknesses or weaknesses that jeopardize the
liquidation of the debt. Assets in this category are inadequately protected by the cunent sound
worth and paying capacity of the obligor or the collateral pledged, if any. These credits are
characterized by the distinct possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the deficiencies
are not corrected. Often, the assets in this category will have a valuation allowance representative
of management's estimated loss that is probable to be incurred.

Doubtful - Assets in this category are mnsidered "doubtful"in accordance with regulatory guidelines,
are placed on nonaccrual status and may be dependent upon collateral having a value that is
difficult to determine or upon some near-term event which lack certainty. Generally, these credits
will have a valuation allowance based upon management's best estimate of the losses probable to
occur in the liquidation of the debt.

Loss - Assets in this category are considered "losl'in accordance with regulatory guidelines and are
considered uncollectible and of such little value as to question their continued existence as assets on
the Company's consolidated financial statements. Such assets are to be charged off or charged
down when payment is acknowledged to be uncertain or when the timing or value of payments
cannot be determined. This category does not intend to imply that the debt or some portion of it
will never be paid, nor does it in any way imply that the debt will be forgiven.
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NOTE 6 ALLOWANCE FOR POSSTBLE CREDIT LOSSES (CONINUED)

The following table presents loans and factored receivables by risk grade and loan class at
December 31, 2016 and 2015. There were no loans graded Doubtful or Loss at each year end
period.

Pass

Management
attention OAEM/SubSandard

Total loans and
factored

receMables

20L5
Commerc'nl real estate mortgage
Constructbn and

land devebpment
14 famiV resiJent'El
Mu ltFfamiV resiriential
Commercial and ind ustrhl
Nondepository institutbns
Consumer - automobiles
Consumer - other
Other

Factored receivabhs

Total

2015
C-ommercial real estate mortgage
@nstructbn and

land devebpment
14 family resilenthl
Mu lt Ffamily resiie nt ial

Commercial and indu*rhl
Nondepository institutions
Consumer - automobihs
Consumer - other
Other

$ 5,576,563 $

1,592,539

$ 96,389,545 $ 1,790,072 $ 7,713,325 $105,892,943

72,89L,829
L94,986,402

6,309,045
23,038,260
27,694,83t

225,207
519,293

7,729,22t

76,223,549
L95,222,003

6,308,045
28,050,536
27,694,83I

225,207
618,293

7,729,22t

3,303,580
99,920

28,140
135,681

5,022,276

429,88L,634
L4,343,739

5,193,572 12,899,422
3,740,074

447,974,628
18,083,813

$444,22s,373 $ 5.193,s72 $ 16,539,496 $465,058,441

$ 80,745,335

74,801,911
177,130,679

4,35t,765
28,538,804
20,980,424

359,975
1,002,588
3.444.000

76,869,407
t77,523,325

4,35L,765
3 1,669,078
20,980,424

359,975
1,002,588
3.444.000

L,093,674

484,858
392,646

3,L30,274

88,405,573

391,365,483
L6,72L.592

8,159,201 5,09L,452
3.322.788

404,616,136
20,044,380Factored receivables

Total $408,087,075 $ 8,159,201 $ 8,4L4,240 $424,660,sli

At Decembet 3t, 20L6, OAEM loans included $5,022,276 in commercial and industrial loans and
$3,633,897 in factored receivables. At December 31, 2015, OAEM loans included $3,123,729 in
commercial and industrial loans and $784,272 in factored receivables.
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NOTE 6 ALLOWANCE FOR POSSIBLE CREDIT LOSSES (CONTINUED)

Sp*ific and General Allowances

IndiMdually
evaluated for
impairment

The Company's loans, factored receivables, and allowance for possible credit losses as of December
31, 2076 by portfolio segment and disaggregated on the basis of the Company's impairment
methodology is as follows:

2016
Collectively

emluated for
impairment TotalLoans

Real estate
Commercial and industrial
Itlondepository instih,rtions

Consumer
Other

Facbred receimbles

Total

Allowance for possible credit losses

Real estate
Commercial and industrial
Nondepository i nstih.tions
Consumer
Other

Facbred receimbles

Total

Allowance as a percentage of
year end loans

130 $454,7L6,3t7 $466,058,44t

General

allowance Total

$ 7,877,t45 $375,769,395
28,060,535
27,694,83t

843,500
7.729.221

$ 383,646,5,10
28,060,536
27,694,831

843,500
7.729.221

7,977,t45
3,464,985

440,097,483
14,618,828

447,974,628
18,083,813

$1

Specific
allowance

$ $ 3,067,451
202,3LL
226,L40

3,694
63,L72

$ 3,067,451
202,3tL
226,L40

3,694
63,1t2

3,562,708
532,795

3,562,708
798,67t265,876

$ 265,876 $ 4,095,503 $ 4,36L,379

2.340/o 0.90o/o 0.94o/o
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NOTE 6 ALLOWANCE FOR POSSTBLE CREDTT LOSSES (CONINUED)

The Company's loans, factored receivables, and allowance for possible credit losses as of December
31, 2015 by portfolio segment and disaggregated on the basis of the Company's impairment
methodology is as follows:

2015
IndiMdually

ewluated for
impairment

Collectively
eraluated for
impairment Totalloans

Real estate
Commercial and industial
Nondepository institutions

Consumer
Other

Factored receivables

ToEl

Allowance for oossible credit losses

Real estate
Commercial and industrial
t',londepository i nstihrtions

Consumer
Other

Factored receiwbles

$ 4,3.10,885 $ 420,319,631 wL660ffi

$ 1,961,179
6,545

$ 345,188,892
31,662,533
20,980,424

t,372,564
3.1,14.000

$347,150,070
31,659,078
20,980,424

1,372,564
3.444.0O0

1,967,723
2,373,L62

402,648,413
77,67L,218

404,616,L36
20,044,380

Specific
allowance

General
allowance Tohl

$ $ 2,725,479 $
204,8t2
188,578

5,841
24,907

2,725,479
205,7t8
188,578

5,84L
24,907

905

906
70,L38

3,t49,677
652,188

3,150,523
722,326

Total

Allowance as a percentage of
1rear end loans

$ 7L,044 $ 3,801,805 $ 3,872,849

1.640/o 0.90o/o 0.9Lo/o
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Unpid Pnncipl Balance of Impaired Lmns and Factord Rreiuables

The following table includes the unpaid principal balances for impaired
receivables, segregated by loan class, as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

loans and factored

2016
Construction and land development

Facbred receimbles

Total

2015

Construction and land denelopment

Factored receilables

Total

Recorded
balance of

impaired loans
and factored
receirables

$ 28,L40

3,464,985

$ 3,493,12s

$ 34,858

1,803,067

$ t,837,925

Total unpaid
principal

balance

$ 28,140

3,454,995

$ 3,493,L2s

$ 34,858

1,903,067

$ 1,837,925
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NOTE 6 ALLOWANCE FOR POSSTBLE CREDTT LOSSES (CONTINUED)

Recorded Investment in Impaired Loans and Factored Receivables and Related Allowance

The following table provides information about the recorded investment in impaired loans and the
related allowance by loan class at December 31, 2016 and 2015. Accrued interest receivable and
deferred fees for impaired loans are considered not material and not included in this table.

Recorded
balance of

impaired loans
and factored
receiwbles

Less related
specific

allowance
Recorded

investnent net
2016

Without a related allowance:

Construction and land development $ 28,t40 $ $ 28,140

28,740 28,L40

3,464,985 265,876 3,199,109

$ 3,493,t25 $ 265,876 $ 3,227,249

34,858 $ $ 34,858

34,858 34,858

1,803,067 70 138 1,732,929

With a related allowance:

Factored receivables

Total

201s
Without a related allowance:

Construction and land development $

Wih a related allowance:

Factored receivables

Total $ L,837,925 $ 70,138 $ t,767,787

Average Investment in Impaired Loans and Factored Receiuables

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the approximate average investment in impaired
loans and factored receivables is $2,651,000 and $1,057,000, respectively.

Recorded Interest Income on Impaird Loans

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, there was no interest income recorded for
impaired loans.
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NOTE 7 PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

2016 2015

Land

Buildings
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment
Automobiles
Computer hardware and softrarare

Consfuction in progress

Less accum ulated depreciation a nd a mortization

Total premises and equipment

Balance, beginning of year
Premiums paid

Interest earned, net of costs

Balance, end of year

$ 10,150,374 $ 9,352,591
500,000

303,653 297 783

$ t0,454,027 $ 10,150,374

$ 2,273,127
7,672,779
t,33L,925
2,709,409

132,869
2,6t7,948

53,554

$ 2,273,t28
7,660,466
1,331,925
2,609,276

t32,869
2,754,369

16,762,033
(8,40L,927)

$ 8,360,106

NOTE 8 BANK OWNED UFE INSURANCE

The Company purchased life insurance policies, some of which are under split dollar agreements,
covering employees for which an insurable interest existed at the date of purchase. The Company
records the expense related to the post-retirement costs to carry the insurance in salary and
benefits, with the offsetting liability in accrued deferred compensation liabilities (see Note 15).
Primarily these policies are secured by the general assets of the insurance companies. Bank
owned life insurance policies and the net increase in cash surrender value during the years ended
December 37,2076 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

2016 2015
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NOTE 9 ACCRUED INTEREST AND FEES RECEIVABLE

Accrued interest and fees receivable at December 31, 2016 and 2015 consists of the following

2016 2015

$ 2,036,3s2 $ 1,903,8s1

NOTE 10 OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED

During 2016, the Company received proceeds on the sales of other real estate owned of $749,549,
resulting in a gain of $L07,228. The Company held no other real estate at December 31,2016 and
2015. There were no foreclosures or sales for the year ended December 31, 2015.

2016

Loans

Factored receirables
Securities available for sale

Balance, beginning of lear
Noncash foreclosure and repossession of

real estate in partial saUsfaction of debt
Capitalized costs
Charges against the allowance for

possible credit losses
Sales

Balance, end of year

$ 1,115,678
509,528
4L1,L46

$

$ 1,009,613
457,472
436,766

598,747
35,22L

(633,968)

$
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NOTE 11 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARYTRUSTAND JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBT

During 2007, the Company completed the private placement of an aggregate of $5,500,000 of trust
preferred securities through its wholly owned subsidiary Central Bancshares Statutory Trust III
(Trust III), of which the Company owns all of the common securities at a cost of $171,205.

Trust III invested $5,671,000 in the Companyt junior subordinated debentures due 2037. The
interest rates for the capital securities and the debentures float quarterly. The interest rate for Trust
III is the 3-month UBOR rate plus L.74o/o, or 2.70o/o and 2.75o/o at December 3L, 20L6 and 2015,
respectively. The Company's subordinated debentures carry the same rates with interest payable to
Trust III.

The debentures, which are the only assets of Trust III, are subordinate and junior in right of
payment to all present and future senior indebtedness of the Company. The Company has fully and
unconditional ly gua ranteed Trust III's ca pita I securities obl i gations.

The trust preferred securities may currently be included in ner 1 capital for regulatory capltal
adequacy purposes.

NOTE 12 DEPOSITS

The following table presents information relating to deposits at December 37,20t6 and 2015

20t6 2015

Time deposits in denominations of $250,000 or more

Deposits brokered through a reciprocal depository

Deposits from state and political subdivisions

Overdraft deposits reclassified as loan balances

$ 42,624,L56 $ 30,063,089

$ 30,005,886 $ 22,t02,030

$ 153,631,700 $ 150,871,400

$ 18,409 $ 94,188

At December 3L,2076, the scheduled maturities of all time deposits are as follows:

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

$ 99,016,242
42,300,t44

8,766,674
4,437,97L
2,868,161
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NOTE 13 BORROWINGS

Heral Home Loan Bank Aduances

At December 3L,20t6 and 2015, the Company has outstanding advances from the FHLB which are
collateralized by a blanket pledge of qualiffing loans and securiUes. At December 31, 2016 and
2015, the carrying value of qualifying pledged loans and securities is $23L,872,238 and

$203,968,052, respectively. At December 31, 2016, the Company has additional borrowing capacity
of $L09,482,238 available under this facility. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the advances are as
follows:

MaturiU Payment schedule

hterest
Rate 2016 2015

January 4,2016
June 6, 2016
October \9,2016
January t8,2017
February t,2017
March 6, 2017
April 17,20t7
October 31, 2018
October t6,2Ol9

Overnight
Balloon at maturity
Balloon at maturity
Balloon at maturity
Balloon at maturity
Balloon at maturity
Balloon at maturity
Balloon at maturity
Balloon at maturity

5,ooo,ooo
3,000,000
3,000,000
2,ooo,ooo
5,ooo,ooo
3,000,000

$ 6,800,000
4,00o,ooo
2,ooo,o0o
5,ooo,ooo
3,ooo,ooo
3,000,000
2,000,000

3,000,000

0.31o/o

0.970/o

0.360/o

0.97o/o

1.15o/o

7.04o/o

0.970/o

0.670/o

0.590/o

$

Adwnces ouEtanding $ 21,000,000 $ 28,800,000

Notes Payable

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has notes payable to a correspondent bank as
follows:

MaturiW Payment schedule
Interest

Rate 2016 2015

December 5,2021 Quarterly payments of $281,563 3.75o/o $9,010,000 $4,910,000
plus accrued interest with balloon
maturity

December 5,2017 $5 million rerclMng line of credit
with quarterly interest due

3.75o/o 50,000 1,150,000

I'lotes outsbnding
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NOTE 13

NOTE 14

BORROWTNGS (CONnNUED)

At December 37, 20t6, annual required principal payments on these notes are as follows

20t7
2018
20t9
2020
202t

$ 1,176,252
1,t26,252
1,t26,252
1,t26,252
4,504,992

$ 9,060,000

The notes are collateralized by the common stock of the Bank. At December 3L, 2Ot6 and 2015, the
Company is in compliance with the debt covenants, which include maintaining capital ratios and
limiting additional borrowings.

Unfunded Letters of Credit and Unes of Credit

At December 3L,20L6 and 2015, the Company has unfunded letters of credit ftom the FHLB totaling
$101,390,000 and $70,235,000, respectlvely, which at December 37, 20L6, are pledged to secure
public deposits. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has unfunded ovemight lines of credit
with other banks totaling $17,500,000.

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had outstanding funds amounting to $9,447,620 and
$2,049,090, respectively, received from the sale of securiUes under agreements to repurchase.
Securities subject to the transfer of ownership under the repurchase agreements are included in
pledged securities, and the carrying value of these securities is disclosed in Note 3. The Company
transacts these repurchase agreemenb with its customers and pays interest at rates ranging from
0.25o/o to 0.50o/o according to the terms of each repurchase agreement.
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NOTE 15 DEFERRED COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFTT PLANS

frlary Continuation Plan and Split Dollar

ln 2002, the Company adopted a Salary Continuation Plan to provide for post-retirement
compensation. During 2005, the Company executed agreements with certain executive officers, and
is accruing the present value of expected costs over the periods prior to retirement for each
participant. The deferred liability, which includes the post-retirement costs to carry split-dollar life
insurance, has been recorded as follows for the years ending December 3L,20L6 and 2015:

2016 201s

Deferred liability, beginning of year
Transfer from Survivor Income
Expense recorded

Deferred liability, end of year

$ 3,o03,g4o

201,193

2,602,01,5
240,267
161,658

$

$ 3,205,133 $ 3,003,9,10

The Company expects to record future expenses annually for the Plans as follows:

308,738

L82,t76

220,2t5
209,093

182,608

$ 1,102,830

Suruivor Income Plan

During 2011, the Company executed agreements with certain executive officers to provide death
benefits to the designated beneflciary of the executive officer. The Company was accruing the
present value of expected costs over the periods prior to retirement for each participant. In 2015,
the Survivor Income Plan was transferred to the Split Dollar Plan.

20t7
2018

2019

2020

202L

$

38



CENTRAL BANCSHARES, rNC.
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NOTE 15 DEFERRED COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT P|-ANS (CONINUED)

Long Term Incentive Compensation Plan

In 20L2, the Company adopted a Long Term Incentive Compensation Plan (LnP) whereby key
employees have the oppoftunity to earn phantom stock awards. In 2015, the Company amended
these awards to vest over from seven year to five year duration. Awards will be settled in cash, and
vesting is subject to certain peformance criteria. The Company will record compensation expense
each year through 2025 related to vesUng and the increase in intrinsic value. The Company entered
into agreements with key employees under the plan as follows:

Year granted Valuation date
Value

granted

Estimated

market wlue
per share

upon grant
Phantom shares

granted

2012
2013
20t4
2015

20t6

December 31, 2011
December 3L,20L2
December 31, 2013

December 3L,2074
December 31, 2015

$ 163,325
378,000
655,075
555,000
567,500

$
$

$

$

$

7,200
8,725
9,786

L2,860
14,750

22.26
43.32

66.94
43.t6
38.47

Award at date of grant $ 2,318,900 214.t5

The estimated deferred liability related to the Long Term Incentive Compensation Plan calculated at
management's current esUmate of share value is approximately $3,500,000.

The deferred liability for the Long Term Incentive Compensation Plan for vested awards is recorded
as follows at December 31, 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015

Deferred liability, beginning of year
Paymenb LTIP

Expense recorded

Deferred liability, end of year

$ $449,47t

508,400

762,521
(5,350)

292,300

$ 9s7,871 $ 449,477

Stock Appreciation Righb Plan

During 2007, the Company adopted a Stock Appreciation Rights Plan covering certain executive
officers and allowing for rights for 400 shares of common stock to be granted. The value of each
right is deflned under the Plan as the book value of a share of the Company's common stock,
adjusted for nonroutine transactions as determined by the Board of Directors. All rights vest after
flve years and are to be settled in cash. Rights granted in 2007 became fully vested during 20t2 and
were extended one year at the option of each grantee.
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NOTE 15 DEFERRED COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (CONnNUED)

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had 40 and 90 rights outstanding, respectively, and
the liability for these rights is recorded as follows:

20L6 2015

Deferred liability, beginning of year
Payments made
&pense recorded

Deferred liability, end of year

$ 310,869
(184,408)

63,850

$ 303,562
(128,193)
135,500

$ 190,311 $ 310,869

Stock Option Plan

In 1998, the Company adopted a Stock Option Plan whereby participants may purchase up to 392
shares of Company common stock. During 1998, all shares available for grant were granted, of
which options for 89 shares were eventually fofeited. During 2007, options for 89 shares were
granted to an officer of the Company at an exercise price of $7,000 per share with an expiration
date of October 24, 20t7. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, there are no options available for future
grant.

At December 3t, 20L6 and 2015, the Company had options for 34 and 73 shares outstanding,
respectively. In July and December of 2016, an officer exercised options totaling 39 shares.

$273,000 was received in cash related to the exercise. In August of 2015, an officer exercised
options for 16 shares, cash in the amount of $112,000 was received related to this exercise.

Employee Benefit Plan

The Company provides a defined contribution 401(k) benefit plan for all eligible employees. Prior to
2015, the Company matched 50% of employee contributions to a maximum of 3o/o of employee
compensation annually and may have made discretionary contributions to the Plan. During 2015, the
Company revised the plan so that beginning January l, 20t5, the Company matches 50o/o of
employee contributions to a maximum of 4o/o of employee compensation annually. Benefit plan
contributions in 2016 and 2015 amounted to $343,830 and $308,635, respectively.
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NOTE 16 SHAREHOLDER BUYOUT

During 2012, the Board of Directors approved ceftain transactions to enable the Company to make a

Subchapter S election under the guidelines of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC), Each share of stock
owned by a shareholder who did not meet the requirements to be a "qualifled shareholder" under
IRC guidelines was converted to cash in the amount of $7,975 per share. In addition, shareholders
could opt out of the transaction, and those shares also converted to cash at the $7,975 per share
stated price. On December 27,20L2, the Company finalized the buy-back transaction and recorded
the treasury stock redemption liability for the ineligible shareholders'shares and the opt-out shares
as follows:

Price paid per share
Times the number of shares purchased

Common shares issued, end of year

Less treasury stock:
Shares held in Ueasury beginning of year
Shares issued during the year

Shares held in beasury, end of year

Common shares outstanding, end of year

$ 7,975
s021

Stock redemption liability $ 11,978,450

At December 3t, 2016 and 2015, the Company has a liability for cash payments to former
shareholders of $-0- and $31,900 respectively.

NOTE 17 COMMON STOCK AND TREASURY STOCK

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has 50,000 shares of common stock authorized at a
par value of $1 per share. At December 31, 2016 and 2015 the Company has shares issued and
outstanding as follows:

2016 2015

4,694 4,694

541
(16)

525

4,208 4,169

During 2016, there were 39 shares of treasury stock issued in connection with the exercise of stock
options (Note 15). The shares were purchased into treasury at a cost of $7,975 per share and were
sold for an aggregate recorded value of $273,000 ($7,000 per share). During 2015, the Company
issued 16 shares of stock out of treasury and were sold for an aggregate recorded value of $112,000
($7,000 per share).

At December 31, 20t6 and 2015, the number of shareholders is 30, and 89o/o of the shares
outstanding are considered closely held.

525

486
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DECEMBER 3 2016 AND 2015

FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

2013 Convercion to Subchapter S Corporation

The Company is organized for federal income tax purposes as a Subchapter S Corporation effective
January l,2OL3. The Company has residual ongoing tax obligations resulting from the Subchapter S

election. Because the Company applied the reserue method for determining tax deductions for bad
debts in its previous tax returns, the accumulated excess bad debt deductions over actual charge-
offs of $7,236,478 must be recaptured and reported as income in future tax returns during the years
2013 through 2015. As a result the Company recorded this tax liability and the associated additional
tax expense of $420,403 in 2013. The Company has paid all of this obligation as of December 31,
2015. Any build in gains tax that might be payable by the Company will be expensed and paid as
incurred over the five year period expiring December 31, 2017.

NOTE 19 REI.ATED PARTY TRANSACflONS

Related parties are defined as executive officers and directors of the Bank and directors and
signiflcant shareholders of the Company. Shareholders are considered significant if they and their
affiliates own 5olo or more of the Company's stock. In the ordinary course of business, the Company
has conducted and expects to conUnue to conduct routine banking business with related pafties.
Such activities with related parties are identifled as follows:

Loans - At December 31, 2016 and 2015, there were no loans to such related borrowers.

Unfunded Commitments - At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had $160,000 in unfunded
commitments to related pafties, of which $150,000 represents unfunded letters of credit for both
years.

Deposits - The Company held deposits from related parties of $1,182,593 and $1,088,912 at
December 3t, 20L6 and 2015, respectively.

Leases - The Company maintains leases with a shareholder as described in Note 20.

NOTE 20 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Fina ncia I Instrumen E Wth Off-Ba la nce -Sheet Risk

The Company is a party to various financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal
course of business to meet the flnancing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include
commitments to extend credit for loans in process, commercial lines of credit, overdraft protection
lines, and standby letters of credit at both fixed and variable rates of interest. Those instruments
involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amounts
recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. The contract or notional amounts of those
instruments reflect the extent of the involvement the Company has in particular classes of financial
instruments. The Company's exposure to possible credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the
other party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of
credit is represented by the contractual notional amount of those instruments. The Company uses
the same credit policies in making these commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-
ba lance-sheet i nstruments.
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NOTE 20 COMMTTMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONINUED)

The Company evaluates each customer's credit worthiness on a case by case basis. The amount of
collateral obtained, if considered necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on
managemenfs credit evaluation of the customer,

In addition, credit limits have been established for Advantage's factoring customers. Case by case
decisions are made on all receivables presented to Advantage for advances regardless of a
customer's unadvanced ava i lable credlt limit.

The following is a summary of the various flnancial instruments at December 31, 2016 and 2015
whose contract amounts represent credit risk:

2016 2015

Commifnents to extend credit - Bank

Unadvanced awilable credit - Adwnhge

Standby letters of credit - Bank

Unfunded limited parhership capital
commiUnent (Note 4)

$ 81,298,254 $ 105,791,689

$ t9,378,7t3 $ 37,583,725

$ 3,752,806 $ 3,246,8t6

$ 450,000 $ 900,000

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation
of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or
other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are
expected to expire without being fully drawn upon, the total commitment amounts disclosed above
do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Guidance lines are not included in the above
commitment amounts. The above unfunded commitments for Advantage represent available
balances for additional receivable purchases for approved Advantage customers.

Standby letters of credit are condiUonal commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is
essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to ib customers.

Lease Commitments

Fufure minimum lease commitments by year and in the aggregate under noncancelable related party
operating leases are as follows at December 31, 2016:

20t7
2018

$ 199,575
204,0t0
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NOTE 20 COMMTTMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONINUED)

The Company maintains lease agreements for a Bank branch with leased office space of 8,870
square feet. Related party rent expense in 2016 and 2015 amounted to $338,539 and $322,826,
respectively. Rent expense for all operating leases of premises and operating leases of equipment in

2016 and 2015 amounted to $377,026 and $390,075, respectively.

NOTE 21 REGUI.ATORY MATTERS

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by
state and federal banking agencies. Capital adequacy guidelines and, additionally for banks, prompt
corrective action regulations, involve quantitative measures and risk weighting of assets, liabilities,
and certain ofF-balance sheet items calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Capital
amounts and classiflcations are also subject to qualitative judgments by regulators about
components, risk weighting, and other factors.

Failure to meet the minimum regulatory capital requirements can initiate ceftain mandatory and
possible additional discretionary actions by regulators that if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements. Management believes, as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, that the Company and the Bank meet all the capital adequacy
requirements to which they are subject.

44



CENTRAI BANCSHARES, rNC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 21 REGULATORY MATTERS (CONINUED)

The Bank was categorized as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action by the Federal Reserve Bank in their most recent examination repoft as of June 30, 2016. At
December 31, 2016, the Bank is considered well capitalized under the regulatory framework. To
remain well capitalized, the Bank will have to maintain minimum total risk-based, f ier I risk-based,
Common Equity Tier 1 (or CETI) and Tler I leverage capital ratios as disclosed in the following table.
There are no conditions or events since the most recent notification that management believes have
changed the Bank's prompt corrective action category. The following is a summary of capital ratios
at December 31, 2016 and 2015 for the Bank:

Actual
For Capital

Adeouacv Purooses
AnDunt Ratio ArrDUnt Ratio

To Be Well Capitalized
AnDunt Ratio

20t6
Total Capital to

Risk Weighted Assets
CET1 Capital to

REk Weighted Assets
Ter I Capital to

Risk Weighted Assets
teverage Ratio
Total Assets (Leverage)

2015
Total Capital to

Risk Weighted Assets
CET1 Capital to

Risk We'ghted Assets
fier I Capital to

Risk Weighted Assets
Leverage Ratio
Total Assets (Leverage)

$60,246,000

$55,885,000

$55,885,000

$55,885,000

$36,854,000

$20,730,375

$27,ffi0,500

$24,LL3,920

$35,453,440

$19,942,560

$26,590,080

$22,5L9,L20

$46,067,500

$29,943,875

$36,8s4,000

$30,142,400

L3,lo/o

L2.Lo/o

12,lo/o

9.3o/o

8.0olo

4.50/o

6.0o/o

4.Oo/o

8.0olo

4.5o/o

6.0o/o

4.0o/o

10.0olo

6.5o/o

8.0olo

5.00/o

$53,176,000

$49,303,000

$49,303,000

$49,303,000

12.0o/o

11.1olo

Ll.lo/o

8.8o/o

$,14,316,800

$28,805,920

$35,453,440

$28,148,900

10.0olo

6.5o/o

8.0olo

5.0o/o

Dividend Restrictions

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is dependent upon dividends from the Bank to
provide for the payment of tax distributions, dividends to shareholders, and other cash
requirements. During 2016 and 2015, the Company distributed $3,428,949 and $2,565,927 to
shareholders for the payment of federal income taxes.

Banking regulations may limit the amount of dividends that may be paid. Approval by regulatory
authorities is required if the effect of dividends declared and paid by the Bank would anuse the
regulatory capital of the Bank to fall below specified minimum levels.

Restridions on Lending from Subsidiary to Parent

Federal law imposes certain restrictions limiting the ability of the Bank to transfer funds to the
Company in the forms of loans or advances. Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act prohibits the
Bank from making loans or advances to the Company in excess of 10% of its capital stock and
surplus, as defined therein. There were no such loans or advances outstanding at December 31,
2016 and 2015.
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NOTE 22 FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES

The fair value of an asset or liability is the price that would be received to sell that asset or paid to
transfer that liability in an orderly transaction occurring in the principal market (or most
advantageous market in the absence of a principal market) for such asset or liability. In estimating
fair value, the Company utilizes valuation techniques that are consistent with the market approach,
the income approach, and or/the cost approach, Such valuation techniques are consistently applied.
Inputs to valuation techniques include the assumptions that market paticipants would use in pricing
an asset or liability.

Fair Value Hierarchy

U,S. GAAP specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based upon whether the inputs to those
valuation techniques are obseruable or unobservable. These inputs are summarized in the three
broad levels listed below.

Level 1 - Level 1 inputs are based upon unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Level 2 inputs are based upon other significant obseruable inputs (including quoted prices

in active or inactive markets for similar assets or liabilities), or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by obseruable market data for substantially the full term of a financial
instrument.

Level 3 - Level 3 inputs are based upon unobservable inputs reflecting managemenfs assumptions
that are suppofted by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the asset
and liability. Level 3 measurements are determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow
methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as the use of significant management judgment or
estimation.

During the years ending December 31,2076 and 2015, there were no transfers of assets or liabilities
within the levels of the fair value hierarchy.

Fair value is based upon quoted market prices, where available. If such quoted market prices are not
available, fair value is based upon internally developed models that primarily use obseruable market-
based parameters as inputs. Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that assets and liabilities
are recorded at fair value. These adjustments may indude amounts to reflect counterpafi credit
quality and creditwofthiness, the underlying value of collateral pledged to loans, and other
unobseruable parameters. Any such valuation adjustments are applied consistently over time.

The Company's valuation methodologies may produce a fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. While management believes the
Company's valuation methodologies are appropriate and consistent with other market participants,
the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain assets or
liabilities could result in a different estimate of fair value at the repoting date.
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NOTE 22 FArR VALUE DISCLOSURES (CONINUED)

Financiallnstruments Recorded at Fair Value

Recurring - The following table summarizes financial instruments measured at fair value on a
recurring basis as of December 37, 2076 and 2015. There were no flnancial instruments measured
at fair value on a recurring basis using Level 1 or Level 3 valuations inputs at December 31, 2016
and 2015.

2016 2015

Level 2:

Securities arrailable for sale

Nonrecurrino - Nonrecurring measurement applies to instruments that are not measured at fair value
on an ongoing basis, but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances, for example,
when there is evidence of impairment. The following table summarizes financial instruments
measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. At December 31,
2016 and 2015, the Company held no financial instruments measured at fair value on a nonrecurring
basis with Level 1or Level 3 valuation inputs.

2016 2015

Level 2:

Impaired loans, net

Impaired facbred receirables, net

$ 28,L40 $ 34,858

$ 3,464,985 $ 1,803,067

Nonfinancial Assets and Nonfinancial Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value

Recurrinq - At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has no nonflnancial assets or
nonfinancial liabilities measured at fair value on a recuning basis.

Nonrecurring - At December 31, 2076 and 2015, the fair value of other real estate owned that would
be disclosed in Note 10 would be measured on a nonrecurring basis using Level 2 inputs. At
December 31,20L6 and 2015, the Company held no nonflnancial instruments measured at fair value
on a nonrecurring basis with Level 1 or Level 3 valuation inputs.

Fair Value Dirclosure for all Financial Instruments

The Company is required to disclose the fair value of all financial instruments, including those
financial assets and financial liabilities not recorded at fair value in its consolidated balance sheets,
for which it is practicable to estimate fair value. Following is a table that summarizes the estimated
fair market values of all financial instruments of the Company at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
followed by methods and assumptions that were used by the Company in estimating the fair value.

$ 97,372,L07 $ 100,897,154
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The estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments are as follows at December 31,
2016 and 2015 (in thousands):

2016
EstimaEd Fair Values

Level 1 Lerrel 2 Lerel 3 Totals
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equirralenb
Securities awilable for sale

Other inrresfnenB
Other bank stock
Loans, net
Factored receivables, net
Bank owned life insurance

$ 596,796 $ 4,459 $ 9t,372 $ 503,792 $ 599,523

Financial Liabilities
lbninErest - bearing deposiB
Interest - bearing deposits
FHl.8 advarrces
lbtes payable
Junior subordinated debentures
Repurchase agreements
Accrued resen/es on facbred receinbles

$561,376$136,254$425,4t6 $ -$561,670

Carrying
Amount

$ 26,439
91,372
4,3@
2,792

444,145
17,295
L0,454

$ t36,254
376,675

21,000
9,060
5,671
9,448
3,268

$ L36,254

$-
91,372

$ 21,980

4,309
2,792

445,972
17,285
10,454

$ 26,439
9t,372
4,38
2,792

446,972
17,295
10,454

$ 136,254

377,tL9
20,950
9,060
5,67L
9,448
3,zffi

$-
377,L19

20,850
9,050
5,67t
9,448
3,268
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Financial AsseE
Cash and cash equivalents
Securities awilable for sale

Other investrnenE
Other bank stock
Loans, net
Factored receirables, net
Bank owned life insurance

2015
Estimated Fair Values

Carrying
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Lelael 3 Totals

$ 12,802
100,897

5,100
2,269

401,016
t9,322
10,150

100,897
$ 4,s77 $ $ 8,225

$ 448,7t3

$

$ 12,802

100,897
5,100
2,269

403,647
L9,322
10,150

5,100
2,269

403,647
L9,322
10,150

$__!51Eq
Financial Liabilities

l,l,oninterest - bearing deposits $ 119,016
Interest - bearing deposits 355,617
FHLB adrances 28,800
l,lotes palable 6,060
Junior subordinated debentures 5,67L
Repurchase agreements 2,M9
Accrued reseryes on factored receivables 3,168

$ 4,577

$ 119,016

$ 100,897

$
355,874

28,579
6,050
5,67L
z,u9
3,169

$ 554,187

$ 119,015

355,874
28,579
6,060
5,67L
2,449
3,168

?qJ $19919 11q1,401 $ $s20,417

The estimated fair value amounts of financial instruments have been determined by the Company
using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable
judgment is required to interpret data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the
estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could realize
in a cunent market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation
methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Va I ua tion Meth odo log ies

The fair values of various financial instruments have been determined as follows

Cash and deposits at other bank - For these shoft-term liquid instruments, the carrying amount is a
reasonable estimate of fair value.
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Securities available for sale - For securities available for sale, fair value equals quoted market price,
if available. If a quoted market price is not available, management's estimate of fair value considers
measurements from an independent pricing service that may consider dealer quotes, market
spreads, and cash flow, and certain credit quality factors, as applicable.

Other investments - Other investments primarily consist of the short-term reverse repurchase
agreement. For the short-term reverse repurchase agreement the carrying amount at cost is a
reasonable estimate of fair value due to the short-term nature of the instrument.

Other bank stock - Restricted stock consists of Federal Home Loan Bank stock, Federal Reserve Bank
stock, and TIB stock. Cost, which is the carrying amount, is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Loans and Factored Receivables - Fair value of loans are estimated for segregated groupings of
loans with similar flnancial characteristics. Loans are segregated by segment such as real estate,
commercial and consumer, and other loans. Each of these categories is further subdivided into flxed
and adjustable rate loans and performing and nonpeforming loans. The fair value of peforming
loans is calculated by discounting scheduled cash flows through the estimated maturity using
estimated market discount rates that reflect the credit and interest rate risk inherent in the various
types of loans. Impaired loans are valued based upon management's estimate of realizable value by
considering ceftain observable market data, typically in the case of real estate collateral, or
customizing discounUng criteria in the case of non-real estate assets pledge as collateral.

Bank owned life insurance - The fair value is estimated by discounting future cash flows using
current interest rates for similar financial instruments.

Deposits - The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.9., interest and noninterest checking,
savings, and of money market accounts) are, by deflnition, equal to the amount payable on demand
at the repoting date (i.e., their carrying amounts). The carrying amounts of variable-rate, fixed-
term ceftificates of deposit approximate their fair values at the repofting date. Fair values for fixed-
rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies
interest rates currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly
maturities on time deposits.

FHLB advances - For these liabilities, the fair value is estimated using the rates cunently offered for
borrowings of similar terms and remaining mafurities.

Notes payable, repurchase agreements, and accrued reseryes on factored receivables - For these
short-term instruments, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Junior subordinated debt - The fair value is considered to be the carrying value due to the floating
rate feature of the debt.
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